DCET Towenk hoc Jor

O LD 20035

MWM QMS
UNVL

Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended

3t March 2014

>
<«
o
b4
o . r
= R3NRQZ3L
RM 29/12/2014 #55

COMPANIES HOUSE

Company Regstration No 05924823




Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited

Highlights

A transformational year for the group following the RSM Tenon (“Tenon”) acquisition
with 47% growth in revenues to £245m*

+ Double digit revenue growth 1n all service hines

Tax and Advisory up 41% to £107m

Audit and Assurance up 23% to £66m

Restructuning and Recovery up 14% to £27m
Corporate Finance up 35% to £16m

New Risk Advisory service line adds £15m to revenues

00 QCO0C

s Profit beforetax up 112% t0 £11 9m
o Financial services busimesses sold for £25m

# Bank loan of £32m drawn to finance the Tenon acquisition fully repaid within 15
months

¢ Dividend increase of 4 2% to 3 75p marking five years of continued dividend growth
o Group net assets per share up 33%
» Business integration largely completed within twelve months of acquisition

e International network move to RSM International, the world's 7 largest global
network with revenues of US$4 2bn and represented in 111 countnes

s 53% increase 1n staff uptake of company shares 1n year bringing total subscribed to
date of nearly £3m

¢ (Cash headroom of £38m at 30 November 2014

*£234m continuing operations and £1 Im discontinued operation
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors submt their report and the audited financial statements of the group and the company for the year
ended 31 March 2014

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
Details of the results for the year and future developments are contained within the Strategic Report on page 4

The drrectors recommend a final dividend on the ordinary shares of 3 75p per share (2013 3 6p per share)
representing an increase of 4.2 per cent over the previous year, amounting to £2 52m (2013 £2 37m)

DIRECTORS
The followmng directors have held office dunng the year

M B Rodgers - Chairman

L P Longe - Managing Director
J C Bleach

D Gwilham

E W Jarvis

N J Tnstem

J A Randall (resigned 2 June 2014)

K P O Conner {resigned 12 June 2014}

DIRECTORS® INDEMNITIES

During the year the group made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors and
these remain m force at the date of this report

EMPLOYEES

Baker Tilly continues to place emphasis on open and effective two-way communication with tts
employees This mcludes, regular meetings at team, departmental, office and regional levels, national
conferences, bi-annual appraisal meetings, a comprehensive intranet, and e-mail bulletins A regular
mternal newsletter 15 sent to all employees from the Chief Operaung Officer, and individual service
lines regularly share ¢-bulletins about their work and development within their specialist areas with all
employees

Employee engagement forum groups have been held across the business to seek employee opinion
and feedback on a number of areas relating to employment, and action taken as a result to implement
some of the suggestions and tdeas which have been put forward Employees are asked to provide
feedback after participating m in-house traiming, so that Baker Tilly can ensure that both the content
and delivery of technical traming and personal development mitiatives continue to be approprate and
effective in meeting employee needs

Followmng the Tenon acquisition, Employee Representatives were elccted to represent their employee
groups and present their views to management for consideration m the integration process of the two
legacy businesses

Baker Tilly remains commuitted to the continuous development of a culture 1n which diversity and
inclusion are actively promoted In addition to remaining commtted to assisting and encouraging all
employees to achieve their full potential, and to trammng line managers in diversity 1ssues, carrying out
regular reviews of relevant policies and practices, and regularly monmitoning employee data, 2014 has seen
the launch of the Baker Tilly Diversity Steering Group This Group sees employees from across the
business work with senior management m seeking to ensure that appropriate action 1s taken to promote
and maintain a diverse and inclusive workforce
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
DIRECTORS® REPORT

The Share Incentive Plan continues in operation with the sole purpose of providing employees with the
opportunity to purchase shares in Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited Employees are mvited to purchase
preferred ordinary shares from the Trustees of the Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited Share Incentive Plan
on a “buy one, get one free” basis A charge for the free shares taken up by the employees 1s reflected in
these financial statements It 1s particularly pleasing 1o note that, following the year-end, staff subscnbed
for a further 639,849 shares bringing the total subscription since the Plan’s mntroduction to £2 84m
Further details of the Share Incentive Plan are disclosed 1n note 29

A Member Share Scheme 15 also 1n place following approval by sharehalders at the shareholder meeting
last December In the year, 1 7m shares were subscribed for by members and 1ssued subsequent to the
year-end Further shares are 1ssued on a “buy one, get one free” basis afier three years, provided the
member remains a member throughout the vesting period

A Profit Share Scheme 1s also i operation and has the aim of rewarding employees 1n Iine with the
annual performance of the busmness The Scheme works on the basis of a percentage of bilhngs which
are allocated to the Profit Share Scheme

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 6 June 2014 the group sold its wealth management business to Towry, retaming the underlying assets and
liabihities On 29 August 2014 the group sold its employee benefits business to Arthur ] Gallagher, retaining
the underlying assets and habilities Total consideration was £25 1m albet the financial effect on the group
cannot as yet be accurately determined

Under the terms of the Tenon acquisition agreement, further consideration became payable 1f the wealth
management businesses were sold within 5 years The further consideration, which 15 payable to the bank and
not acerued for 1 these financial statements, 1s esimated to be £2 4m

On 1 October 2014 the group acquired the business, trade and net assets of Simpson Forsyth, an Aberdeen
based accounting and business advisory partmership for a total consideratton of £2 11m plus net assets
acquired The financial impact on the group of the acquisttion cannot as yet be accurately determined

Since the balance sheet date, the group has negotiated a new seven year £10m facilaty with Lloyds Bank PLC
repayable in quarterly instalments over a ten year penod with a bullet repayment due at the end of the loan
term The loan 1s unsecured and attracts interest at 2 25% over LIBOR

AUDITOR
The auditor, Kingston Smith LLP, Chanered Accountants, has indicated 1ts willingness to continue 1n office
STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

The directors who were 1n office on the date of approval of these financial statements have confirmed that, as
far as they are aware, there 1s no relevant audut mformation of which the auditor 1s unaware Each of the
directors have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in orderto
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been commumicated to the
auditor

By order of the board

-

A Duley
Company Secretary
8 December 2014
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The company acts as the parent company for a group whose activities include, but are not himited 1o, the
provision of auditing, corporate finance, restructuring and recovery, nsk advisory services and tax and advisory
Services

From 28 September 2013, the parent company commenced trading 1n 1ts own night after the hive-up of the trade
of RSM Tenon Limited (“Tenon™) fellowing its acqusition on 2 September 2013 On 31 March 2014, the
former Tenon business was subsequently hived-down to the underlymg operating entities of the group

The group profit before tax was £11 %9m (2013 £5 6m) and reflects the post-acquisition results of the Tenon
busmesses acquired on 2 September 2013 The group profit for the year, after taxation and before discontinued
operations, amounted to £15 6m (2013 £5 3m), an increase of 194%

The result for the year has been sigmificantly impacted by the Tenon acquisition and the subsequent integration
The operating profit for the year discloses exceptional costs of £3m, being those costs directly 1dentifiable as
relating to the transaction and subsequent reorgamsation The true econormic cost for the year cannot be readily
identified and future years will provide a clearer understanding of the group’s performance 2014 should
therefore be viewed as an intenm statement for the enlarged group with the full impact of the acquisition
becoming clear i the 2015 results

Group equity was £39 O0m (2013 £29 3m) an increase of 33% and, within that total, group retained eamings
amounted to £33 6m (2013 £24 8m) Retained eamings of the parent company amounted to £42 8m (2013-
£22 4m)

In terms of liquid resources, the group net debt position was £26 9m (2013 net cash £1 8m) with gross bank
debt standing at £34 9m (2013; £9 3m) Since the year-end the group has returned to a net cash position with
the £32m of borrowings drawn down to finance the acquisition having been fully repaid and the underlying
securnity released. Since the balance sheet date a seven year £10m facihity has been agreed With further
faciliies and overdrafis available of £9m the group had, at 30 November 2014, some £38m of headroom
capacity and continues to be 1deally placed to capitalise on further opportunities as they anse.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The year under review was transformational for the group following the acquisition on 2 September 2013 of
certain businesses from the adminstrators of RSM Tenon Group Ple The acquisition included service hines
similar to those of the existing Baker Tilly group together with a nsk advisory service hine and wealth
management and employee benefits operations (the “FM” businesses) The acquisition has provided further
critical mass to the group 1n 1ts core service hines, provided additional geographical coverage in key markets
and served to consclidate the mid-tier accountancy market.

The cost of the Tenon acquisition was £22 8m Since the year-end, the FM businesses have been sold with
gross proceeds of £25 1m being realised which, together with other avarlable cash resources, enabled the group
to repay the entire £32m facility within 15 months of the transaction

The process of integraung the two businesses was substantially completed pnor to the year-end with all but one
location now reaping the benefits of a single office location 1n all of our geographical markets 1T systems have
been aligned with a common piatform for practice management gomng hive 1n November 2013, so ensuning that
accurate and consistent detailed management information was available within some three months of the
acquisition date Crucially, e-mail system connectivity over the enlarged group occurred within days of the
deal completing

The full annuahised financial impact of the Tenon acquisition has yet to be reflected and consohdated tumover
for the year incorporates only seven months of post-acquisition trading. The 40% ncrease in revenue from
continung eperations for the year under review equates to a 73% increase on an annualised basis
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
STRATEGIC REPORT

Atacquisition, the enlarged group’s annuahsed salary cost was some £117m and, following the restructunng of
our offices and locations, this dropped to £100m on a comparable basis Staff numbers (excluding discontinued
activities) have reduced by 600 to date and the necessary restructuring of the combined business required only
100 formal redundancies The group 1s currently seeking to recnut over 200 people to sabsfy its business needs
with gh demand from candidates being expenienced

Despite a tough overall market, 1t 1s pleasing to report that taxation and business advisory services had a
good year with 41% revenue growth, largely driven by our sector based approach and 1t is anticipated
that this will continue to reap benefits in the coming years International and advisory tax services for
large corporates 1s a key market for us and sigmificant opportunities are being capnalised upon due to
the ever increasing conflicts being expenenced by chients m the appomntment of their service
providers

Our audit and assurance bustness dehivered a good overall performance within the highly compentive and
regulated environment in which 1t must now operate Tumover increased by 23% to £66m. Whilst there werea
sigmficant number of important new chient wins in the year this was partly offset by not only normal atintion
due to chent sales but also lost retenders agatnst low-ball pricing Our policy of consistently deltvenng a high
quality audit service, at sensible and sustainable commercial rates, will continue as we believe that this 1s the
only policy which 1s 1n the best long-term interests of the firm and of our chents.

Qur restructunng and recovery operations have now been reshaped to match reduced traditional demand for
these services 1n what continues to be an overall bemign market for businesses in financial difficulry, dniven by
histoncally low interest rates and creditor forbearance Greater propensity by banks to sell blocks of debt rather
than hquidate thewr positions directly with customers has also had a significant impact and our route to market
for our services has been refined accordingly Growth 1n this service line was 14% to £27m for the period and
this included a much enlarged forensic services offering

Capital markets activity showed good signs of recovery, particulatly in London and the South, and the
specialist sale mandate operations and company advisory services performed well The transaction support
services continued to operate mn a highly price sensitive market, and tumover in the corporate finance service
line showed an overall increase of 35% to £16m.

A new service line was added to the group’s offermg 1n the form of nsk advisory services from the former
Tenon business and contributed £15m to group turnover duning the post-acquisition period This service hine
provides internal audit services to the public and prnivate sectors, as well as IT consultancy and assurance and
fraud investigation services

The group remains commutted to 1ts policy of continuing to develop its existing marketplaces and locations as
well gs new sectors where they align wath the group’s overall strategic plan The year saw continued sigmficant
investment 1n some of the group’s key property locations and our property estate 1s now of the highest quahty.
Following the Tenon acquisition, the group has new significant locations in Southampton, Reading, Swindon,
Nottingham, Leicester, Telford, Grangemouth and Preston

Whilst the expectation 1s that the prevailing economic conditions will improve, the group remains cautious as
European and Far East markets settle into what may be the new norm The group’s policy of managing its debt
and ensunng that 1t retains a strong balance sheet means that it remains well placed to take first mover
advantage should further opportunities anse. A recent example has been the acqusition of a very high quality
firm based 1n Aberdeen since the vear-end which has satsfied our long held desire to have a significant
presence 1 that location

Another very sigmificant strategic decision formally made just afler the year-end was to change our
mternationai network membership from Baker Tilly International to RSM International (“RSM”), the world's
7" largest global network with revenues of US$4 2bn and represented in 111 countries This decision was only
taken after a very detailed and careful companson of the relative strengths of both networks and, 1n the board’s
opinion, 1t was clear cut given the quality and size of the RSM firms 1n some of the largest global economes A
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
STRATEGIC REPORT

detailed review 15 currently underway, at network and country level, to determine how best to ahgn the nerwork
and independent member firm brands around the globe

In summary, the board considers that the group has had an excellent year, with integration completed, the mid-
tier market effectively consolidated, sigmificant growth, pariner profits up, and the retumn of the group to a net
cash position Our decision to join the RSM network 1s already reaping constderable benefits

The outlook for the current year looks promising, wath group results on budget for the first eight months and
growth throughout our service lines Our strategy of growing the business profitably 1s at the core of thisand a
greater emphasis on advisory services 1s a strategy that 1s being actively pursued Nearly 80% of our revenues
are considered to be recurnng and, whilst this provides mherent stability, 1t also provides an ideal platform from
which to grow new advisory service lines to meet ever changing client needs

2015 will be another challenging year for the group, as we continue to build on our enlarged service offering
The broad range of management skills available to us around the country, coupled with the dedication and
support of our partners and staff, will ensure that we reap the long-term benefits of the exceilent opportumty
that has been afforded by the Tenon acquisition and our membership of RSM

The results for the year would not have been achievable without the continued dedication and commitment of
our partners and staff and the board would like to convey its sincere thanks to all those that contributed so fully
n the year

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

As noted above, the group operates 1n a competitive market place. The principal risks to the group’s business
denve manly from any failure to retain clients, key staff and to win new work The group manages this nsk by
providing & value added, client focused service and mantaiming strong relationships with both its chents and
staff Client take-on procedures are robust and are imbedded through the orgamisation with escalating approval
mechamsms where potential 1ssues or conflicts are identfied

The financial position of the group, its cash flows and hquidity position are discussed above Note 2 to the
financial statements sets out the group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing nisks ansing from the
group’s financial instruments, i particular 1ts exposure to credit and hquidity risks  The process for managing
the group’s capital 1s detailed in note 3 and the borrowing facilities are set out in note 17

The group has sufficient financial resources together with estabhshed relationships with its chents and suppliers
and, as a consequence, the directors believe that the group 1s well placed to manage its business risks
successfully for the foresecable future The group’s nsk register ts monitored by the board on a regular basis
and updated where appropnate to reflect current exposures

ENVIRONMENT

The group recognises the importance of 1ts environmental responsibilities, monitors its impact on the
environment and implements pohicies to reduce any damage that might be caused by the group’s activities

GOING CONCERN

The board, following a review of its profit and cash flow forecasts, has concluded that the group has adequate
resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, we continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting 1n preparing these annual financial statements

/Byfrofthcbof

Laurence Longe Managing Directlor
8 December 2014
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’® Report, the Strategic Report and the financial
statements of the group and company 1n accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and company financial statements for each financial year
The directors have elected under company law to prepare group and company financial statemeats n
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS ) as adopted by the European Union
(“EU7)

The financial statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial
position of the group and the company and the financial performance of the group  The Compames Act 2006
provides n relanon to such financal statements that references i the relevant part of that Act to financial
statements giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the

group for thar penod

In prepanng the group and company financial statements, the directors are required to

a select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

b make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

c state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the EU,

d prepare the financtal statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that

the group and company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are suffictent 10 show and explain
the group’s and company s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tume the financial
position of the group and the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iwregulanties

The directors are also responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financtal information
wncluded on the group’s website  Legislation in the Umited Kingdom goverming the preparation and
dissermination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BAKER TILLY UK
HOLDINGS LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Baker Tilly UK Heldings Limited for the year ended 31 March
2014 which compnse the Consolidated Income Statement, Conseclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Consohdated and Parent Company Statements of Financial Position, the Consohdated and Parent Company
Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Cash Flows and the
related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphied in their preparation 1s applicable law
and International Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umnion and, as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state (o them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibihiies Siatement set out on page 7, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Qur responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s { APB’s) Ethucal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaimng evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finaneial staternents sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This mcludes an assessment of whether the accounting policigs are appropnate to the
group’s and company’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of sipmificant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements In addition we have read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the Directors’
Report to 1dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financal statements and to :dentify any information
that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us
m the course of performing the audil. If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatement or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opimon

e the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

¢ the consohdated financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union,

o the parent company’s financial statements have been properly prepared i accordance with [FRSs as
adopted by the European Umon and as applied 1n accordance with the Compantes Act 2006, and

e the financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance wath the requirements of the Companies Act
2006
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BAKER TILLY UK
HOLDINGS LIMITED

QOpinion on other matter prescribed by the Compames Act 2006

In our opimon the information given in the Directors Report and the Strategic Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial staternents

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, 1n our opimion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not recetved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

RS

Chff ireton (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor
141 Wardour Street

London

WIF QUT

8 December 2014
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Notes 2014 2013

CONTINUING OPERATIONS £ 000 £000
(restated)

REVENUE 4 233,935 166,649
Cost of sales 5 (123,430) {61,188)
Gross profit 110,505 105,461
Administrative expenses 5 (110,266} (99,579)
OPERATING PROFIT 5 239 5,882
Underlying operating profit 3,286 5.882
Exceptional 1tems 5 (3,047) -
Gain on acquisition 15 12,975 -
Finance tncome 6 351 612
Finance costs 7 (1,675} (879)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11,890 5,615 |
Taxation 9 3,725 (354)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS 15,615 5,261

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 22 (1,475) -
(attributable to owners of the parent)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 28 14,140 5,261

As permitted by section 408 of the Compamies Act 2006, no separate income statement 15 presented for the
parent company The parent company profit for the financial year 15 disclosed i note 28
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Notes 2014 2013
£7000 £°000
(restated)
Profit for the year 14,140 5,261
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific condihons are met
Gan on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 14 4 40
Items that will not be reclassified te profit or loss
Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension scheme 31 (3,001) (8,912)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR, NET OF TAX (2,997) (8,872)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 11,143 (3,611)

There 1s no income tax ansing on the items of other comprehensive income, which are disclosed as net of tax

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate statement of comprehensive income 15
presented for the parent company

The group has adopted the amendment to [AS19 regarding employee benefits during the year, resulung mn a
restatement of the 2013 results The financial effect on that year 15 a reduction in profit before tax of £1 597m
and a reduction of the actuanal loss above by the same amount Accordingly there 1s no net smpact on Total
Comprehensive [ncome for that year and further details are disclosed on page 27
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2014

(Company Registranon No 05924823)

Notes
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 12
Propetty, plant and equipment 13
Investments 14
Deferred tax asset 30
Retirement benefit surplus 31
Trade and other receivables 16
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other recervables 16
Deferred tax asset 30
Current tax recervable
Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 17
Trade and other payables 18
Current tax habilities
Cash-settled share based payment Liatnlities 20
Provisions 21
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 17
Other payables 19
Deferred tax liabilities 30
Cash-settled share based payment habihties 20
Reurement benefit deficit 3
Provisions 21

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

2014
£°000

55,562
16,069
113
1,664

204

73,612

100,124
2,409

7.957

110 450

184,102

(20,006)
(70,163)
(61)
{1,202)
(12,275)

(103,707)

(18,250)
(8,712)
(1,216)

92)
1#3]
(13,083)

(41,355)
(145,062)

39,040

2013
£000
15,434
13,667
109
519
221
772

30,722

69,362

563
11,138

81,063
111,785

(5,719)
(42,202)

(900)
(6,840)
(55,661)
(6,500)
(6,487)
(1,422)
(154)
(12,252)
{26,815)
(82,476)

29,309
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2014

(Company Registration No

05924823)

Notes
EQUITY
Called up ordinary share capital 23
Share premmm account 23
Preferred ordinary shares 24
Share incentive plan shares 24
Shares to be 1s5ued 25
Revaluation reserve 27
Retamed earmngs 28

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

2014
£000

672
9,697
46
(6,306)
1,205
113
33,613

39,040

2013
£°000

672

10,117

50
(6,531)

50

109

24,842

29,309

The financial statements on pages 10 to 64 were approved by the board of directors and authonsed forissuc on

8 December 2014 and signed on 1ts behalf by

" /

-

-
L PLONGE (}'
Managing Director

RISTEM

Finance Director
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Baker Tllly UK HOldmgS Limited (Company Regstration No 05924823)
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2014

Notes 2014 2043
£000 £7000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 12 53,955 14,495
Investments 14 77,684 54,520
Deferred tax asset 30 1,234 -
132,373 69,015
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 16 26,502 5,174
Current tax receivable - 5
Cash and cash equivalents 36 1,152
26,538 6,331
TOTAL ASSETS 159,411 75,346
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 17 {19,006) (2,916)
Trade and other payables 18 (78,448) (31,732)
Cash-settled share based payment liabihties 20 (1,202) (900)
(98.,656) (35,548)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables i9 (45} (8%
Cash-settled share based payment liabilities 20 (92) (154)
Deferred tax habilites 30 (1,212) (1,468)
(1,349) (1,707
TOTAL LIABILITTIES (100,005) (37,255)
NET ASSETS 59,406 38,091
EQUITY
Called up ordinary share capital 23 672 672
Share premium account 23 9,697 10,117
Preferred ordinary shares 24 46 50
Share incentive plan shares 24 (6,306) (6,531)
Shares to be 1ssued 25 1,205 50
Merger reserve 26 11,326 11,326
Retained earnings 28 42,766 22,407
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 59,406 38,091
The fipancial statements on pages 10 Lo 64 were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on
8 ber 201 d signed on its behalf by -
| Sl il / /
e
L
L P LONGE " N RIS g
Managing Dhrector Fimance Director
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from/(used 1n) operations
Corporauon tax paid

Interest paid

Cash flows from trading
Cash flows from exceptional items

Net cash flows from continuing operations
Net cash flows from discontinued operations

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of intangble assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on dispoesal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisihon of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

Net consideration on disposal of businesses

Deferred consideration paid

Dividends recerved from investments

Interest recerved

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the acquisttion of preferred ordinary shares by
employees

Repurchased shares from employees

Proceeds from new and renewed borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends paid to holders of preferred ordimary shares
Dividends pad to owners of the company

NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

Notes

32

12
13

15

24
20,24

10

2014 2013
£°000 £'000
10,139 (2,562)
(543) (1,715)
(983) (223)
8,613 (4,500)
(5.339) .
3,274 (4,500)
(1,498) -
1,776 (4,500)
(162) (62)
(5,439) (5,973)
815 821
(20,302) (46)
1,905 -
(4,629) (15)
- 4

351 297
(27,461) (4,974)
414 407
(300) (201)
47,000 5,000
(22,105) (2,730)
(137) (115)
(2,368) (2,295)
22,504 66
(3.181) (9,408)
11,138 20,546
7,957 11,138

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compnise the following balances

Cash at bank and 1n hand
Short-term bank deposits

2014 2013
£000 £000
7,957 4,338

- 6,800
7,957 11,138
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations

Corporation tax received/(paid)

Interest paid

Cash flows from trading
Cash flow from exceptional 1tems

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acquired
Net consideration on disposal of businesses
Deferred consideration paid

Dividends received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the acquisition of preferred ordimary shares by
employees

Repurchased shares from employees

Proceeds from new and renewed borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends paid to holders of preferred ordinary shares
Dhividends paid to owners of the company

NET CASH GENERATED BY/(USED) IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

Notes

32

24
20,24

2014 2013
£2000 £7000
2,430 2,567
5 (577)
(321) -
2,114 1,990
(5,339) -
(3,225) 1,90
(32) -
(17,260) (50)
1,903 .
(1,529) .
6,470 ;
(10,448) (50)
414 407
(300) (201)
32,000 -
{17.052) ;
(137) (115)
(2,368) (2,295)
12,557 (2,204)
(1,116) (264)
1,152 1,416
36 1,152

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compnse the following balances

Cash at bank and 1n hand
Short-term bank deposits

2014 2013
£°000 £°000
36 352

- 800

36 1,152
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL INFORMATION

Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limtted (“the company™) and 1s subsidiaries {together “the group™) predominantly
provides auditing, corporate finance, restructuning and recovery, risk advisory services and tax and advisory
services to corporate and other business entities, not-for-profit ergamsations and high net worth 1ndividuals
The group provides these business services principally m the Unned Kingdom

The company 1s a private hmited company and 1s incorporated and domiciled in Great Britain - The address of
its regustered office 15 6th Floor, 25 Farmingdon Street, London, EC4A 4AB

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements have been prepared m accordance with International Fiancial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS™) and Internattonal Financial Reporung Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations as
endorsed by the EU and the requirements of the Compames Act applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The financial statements have been prepared under the mstonical cost convention, except for the revaluanon of
available-for-sale mvestments The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

GOING CONCERN

The group has considerable financial resources, including undrawn committed facilities of £9m, together
with well-established relationships with chents and suppliers  As a consequence, the directors beheve the
group 15 well placed 1o manage 1ts busmess risks successfully

The board, following review of its profit and cash flow forecasts, 1s of the opimon that the group has adequate
resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly the board continues to
adopt the poing concern basis i preparing these financial statements

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited and all of its
subsidiary undertakings and businesses including the LLPs of which 1t 1s directly, or indirectly, amember The
financial statements of all trading entities are made up to 31 March each year Subsidiaries and businesses are
fully consolidated from the effective date of acquisition (when control s obtamed) and up to the effective date
of disposal (when controi 1s lost}, as appropnate

‘The acquisinon method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisinon of subsidianes and businesses by
the group

The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity mstruments 1ssued and
habihities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisiion Ildentifiable assets acquired and habilities and
contingent Liabilities assumed 1n a business combination are mmitially measured at fanr value at the acqusition
date

Costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition are expensed as incurred
Provisional fair values are adjusted against goodwill 1f additional information 1s obtained within one year of
acquisition date, about facts or circumstances existing at the acqumisition date  Other changes in provisional far

values are recognised through the income statement

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gans on transactions between group companies and
businesses are eliminated on consolidation
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration given for a
business over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and habihities assumed at the date of acquisition
Such goodwill 1s capitalised and subject to an impairment review, both annually and when there 1s an
indication that the carrying value may be impaired Any impairment 1s recognised immediately m the mcome
statement and 1s not reversed

On loss of control of any part of the business, the atiributable amount of goodwill 1s included m the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal

Chent relationships

Client relationships acquired as a result of business combinations are recogmsed as an asset and the cost 1s
amortised evenly over the expected useful life of the relationships, esumated to be between 5 and 10 years
Amortisation commences m the first full year following acquisiion

Restrictive covenants
Restrictive covenants attached to chent portfolios acquired as a result of business combinations are recognised
as an asset and the cost 1s amortised over the appropniate individual member’s contractual period

Software rights
Software nights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and are amortised evenly over 10 years

Computer software

Costs associated with the development of sofiware for use within the business which will generate economic
benefits exceeding one year are capitalised Such costs are amortised evenly over the expected economuc lives
of three to five years. On-going maintenance costs are charged to the income statement as mncurred All
research and other development costs are wntten off as incurred, as the conditions for capitahisation are not
considered to be met

Trademarks

The cost of registenng trademarks 1s capitalised Trademarks are carried at cost less accurmulated amortisation
Amortisation 1s calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of trademarks over their estimated
useful lives of 10 years

Where trademarks are regstered for a penod of one year or less, the cost 1s immediately recogmsed in the
mcome statement

Gain on acquisition

Where the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabihities assumed at the date of acquisiion exceed
the fair value of the consideration gven for a business, an assessment 1s performed to confirm that all of the
assets acquired and all of the liabilines assumed have been correctly 1dentified and to review the procedures
used to measure the :dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the consideration transferred 1fthe
excess remans after undertaking this assessment, 1t 1s recogmsed immediately in the income statement as a
“gain on acqusttion”

Page 22




Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Depreciation 1s charged on all property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land, at rates to wnte each
asset down to 1ts estimated residnal value evenly over its expected useful life, as follows -

Buildings over 50 years
Leasehold improvements over lease lerm
Furniture and office equipment over 10 years/lease term
Computer equipment over 3 years

Motor vehicles over 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted 1f appropnate, at each reporting date

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carmrying amount of the asset and 13 recognised 1n the income statement

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS EXCLUDING
GOODWILL

At each reporting date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any mdication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated 1 order to determine the
extent of the imparrment loss (1f any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from
other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs
An mtangble asset with an indefinite useful hife 1s tested for impairment annually and whenever there 1s an
mdication that the asset may be unpaired

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use In assessing value 1n use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the nme value of meney and the nsks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating umit) is estimated to be less thanis carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount  An impairment loss 1s recognised as an
expense immediately

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised
estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogmised for the asset 1n prior years
A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as income immediately

PROVISIONS

Professional liability claims

Provision 1s made on a case by case basis (n respect of the estimated cost of defending and concluding claims
Where the group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement 1s recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement 15 virfually certain The expense relating to any provision s
presented 1n the income statement net of any expected reimbursement

Surplus property

Provision 1s made for the present value of rental and other costs relating to properties which are surplus to the
group’s requirements net of expected mncome from sub-letting Unwinding of the discount within the
determmation of present value is included within finance costs
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PROVISIONS (continued)

Former member commitmenis

The present value of the best estimate of the expected habilies for future payments to reured members, or
therr dependants, ansing from commitments under earher arrangements, 15 calculated annually by a quahfied
actuary and provided in full Changes in estimates and assumptions in respect of the obhigations are recogmised
n administrative expenses  The unwinding of the discount 1s recogmised 1n finance costs

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Group personal pension plan

A group personal pension plan 1s n operation and 15 open to all employees of the group under which
contnbutions are paid into an independently administered fund  The amount charged to the income statement
i respect of penston costs and other post-retirement benefits 1s the contnbutions payable 1n the year
Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either
accruals or prepayments n the statement of financial position

The group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid

Defined benefit scheme

The group operates a defined benefit pension scheme ( ‘the Scheme”) for ehgible employees The Scheme was
closed to new members and future accrual on 31 March 2010 and deferred pensions were granted to all
members who were still active members on the date of closure

The cost of providmg benefits 1s determined using the deferred accrued benefits method, with actuanal
valuations being carmed out at each reporung date.

Actuanal gains and losses anising are recognised directly 1n other comprehensive income in the penod in which
they anse.

The net defined benefit iabihty or asset recognised 1n the statement of financial posiion represents the present
value of the defined benefit obhgation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets and as adjusted for any hmit
on the net defined benefit asset Any assetresulting from this calculaon 1s limited to the lower of the surplus
tn the defined benefit plan and the present value of available refunds and any reductions in future contributions
to the plan Net nterest on the net defined benefit hality or asset 1s recognised m profit or loss and 1s
determmed by multiplying the net defined benefit lrability or asset by the discount rate determined by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds  The return on the plan
assets and any change 1n the limit on the net defined benefi asset that 1s not included within the net interest on
the net defined benefit hability or asset 15 recognised in other comprehensive income

LEASING

Where assets are financed by agreements that give nghts approximating to ownership, the assets are treated as
if they had been purchased outright and the lease 1s classified as a finance lease  All other leases are classified
as operating leases

The group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recogmsed as assets of the group at their fair value or, 1f lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the agreement The
corresponding liabihty to the lessor 1s included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and the reduction of lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaiming balance of the hability  Finance charges are expensed
directly to the income statement

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a siraight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease
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Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

LEASING (conunued)

Benefits receivable as an incentive to enter mto operating leases are spread on a straight line basis over the
lease term

The group as lessor
Rental ncome from assets leased under operating leases 1s recogmsed on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease

TAXATION

Taxation on the results of the LLPs of which Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited 1s directly, or indirectly, a
member, 1s the hability of the individual members of those LLPs Accordingly, the taxation charge and
cotresponding taxation assets or liabthties represent the position ansing out of the group’s corporate entihes
only

Taxable profit differs from accounting profit reported because st excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible 1n other pertods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The
group’s habity for current tax 1s calculated by using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of
assets and habilines 1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the “balance sheet” liability method Deferred tax habilities are
recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1
probable that taxable profits will be available agamst which deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised 1f the temporary difference anses from the imtal recognition of
goodwill or from the imtial recognition (other than 1n a business combinatton) of other assets and habihities ina
transaction which affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the penod when the asset 1s reahised or
the habtlity 15 settled based on tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax 15 charged or credited in the income statement, except when 1t relates to 1tems credited or charged
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with 1n equity, or items charged or credited
directly to other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax 1s also recogmsed in other
comprehensive income

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Cash-settled share based payments

Cash-settled share based awards are granted to certain employees and members A liability and expense equal
ta the fair value of the services received 1s recogmsed on a straight hne basis over the vesting penod based on
the estimate of the awards that will eventually vest The habilhity 1s re-measured to current fair value
determined at cach reporuing date Changes in fair value are recogmsed in the income statement The fair value
15 measured by an external third party

Provision 1s made for national insurance contributions on outstanding share based paymenis that are expected
to be exercised, based upon the latest enacted national insurance rates

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Group revenue represents amounts chargeable to chents for professional services provided dunng the year,
mclusive of direct expenses mcurred on client assignments but excluding value added tax Group revenue also
includes goods sold, services provided, and fees earned by certain subsidiary companies and businesses
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Revenue 1s recogmsed when a right to consideration has been obtaned through performance under each
contract Consideration accrues as contract activity progresses by reference to the vatue of the work performed

Revenue 1s not recogmised where the nght to receive payment 1s contingent on events outside the control of the
group

Unbilled revenue 1s included 1n trade and other receivables as "Amounts recoverable on services’ Amounts
billed on account in excess of the amounts recognised as revenue are included in trade and other payables as
“Payments received on account™

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial habihities are recognised when the group has become a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Trade and other recervables

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables and are imuaily recogmsed at fair value
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the ¢ffective interest method less any provision for
impairment A provision for impawment 1s made where there 1s objective evidence (such as customers with
financial difficuluies or m default on payments) that amounts will not be recovered 1n accordance with original
terms of the agreement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash in hand and at bank and other short-term deposits held with ongnal
matunities of less than three months Any bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current habilities 1n
the statement of financial position

Investments
Investments in subsidianies and participating interests which are held for the long-term, are stated at cost, less
provision for any impairment

Investments classified as available-for-sale are non-denivatives that are designated as avarlable-for-sale or not
classified 1n any other category of financial asset Investments classified as available-for-sale are mitially
recorded at fair value plus transaction costs Such instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses being recognised directly 1n other comprehensive mncome until the instrument s disposed of or
15 determmed to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gamn or loss previously recogmsed in other
comprehensive ncome 15 recycled and recogmised in the income statement for the penod Impaurment losses
are recogmsed in the income statement when there 15 objective evidence of impairment, including sigmficant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost

Dividend income ansing from mvestments held at farr value 1s recognised in the income statement separately
from gains or losses ansing from changes in fair value and 1s disclosed within finance mcome

Financial habiities

Financial habihiies are imnally measured at fair value, net of transaction costs Financial habilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method The effectve interest method 1s a
method of calculaung the amortised cost of a financial hability and of allocating mterest expense over the
relevant period The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial habihty, or, where appropnate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafis are immitially recorded at fair value net of transaction costs  Finance
charges are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement over the term of the instrument using
the effective interest method
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contnued)

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are imitially stated at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method

Classification of financial habilities and equity
Financial habilites and equity instruments are classified accordng to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the group afier deducting all of 1ts habilities

Preferred ordinary shares

Preferred ordinary shares have a fixed coupon rate  However, whilst these shares are held by the Trustees of
Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited Share Incentive Plan, the Trustees waive their nght to any dividend on the
shares Hence any preferred ordinary shares held by staff are classified as habilities and preferred ordinary
shares held by the Trustees are classified as equity Dividends on preferred ordinary shares classified as
habthties are presented within finance costs

Ordinary share capital
Ordinary share capital issued by the company 1s classified as equity and 1s recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct 1ssue costs

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional 1tems are matenial items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary
activities of the group and which indtvidually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate, need to be disclosed by
virtue of therr size or incidence if the financial statements are to gave a true and fair view

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
New and amended standards adopted by the group

The group adopted the following new or amended standards that 1t was required to adopt during the financial
year:

« 1AS 19 (amendment) “Employee Benefits” The amendment requires that actuanal gans and losses
will be recogmsed smmediately in other comprehensive mncome The amendment also changes the
accounting for past service costs, which are no longer deferred, apphes the same discount rate to the
defined benefit obhigation and the plan assets and restricts the recognition of a defined benefit surplus
to the present value of any economic benefit The method of calculating mcome on plan assets
required by IAS19 (Revised) has resulted 1n a reduction 1n profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 of
£1 597m The actuarial loss reccogmsed 1n other comprehensive income reduced by £1 597m

s [FRS 13 “Fair value measurement” The standard aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise defimtion of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs There have been no changes to the Fair Value
Measurement of available for sale investments or the disclosed fair valuves for financial instruments as
a result of the adoption of IFRS13

» [AS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements” The revision requires items presented in other
comprehensive income to be grouped on the basis of whether or not they are potentially recycled to
profitorloss This presentation has been given in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income on page 11
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ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)
The group has early adopted the following amended standard during the financial year

¢ 1AS 36 (amended) “Impatrment of Assets’ The amended standard requires disclosure of recoverable
amount when an impairment loss 1s recognised or reversed 1n respect of an individual asset or CGUs
and, when recoverable amount 1s based on fair value less costs of disposal, disclosure of the fair value
hierarchy levels and, for levels 2 and 3, the valvation technique and key assumptions used

There were no new or amended standards that the group was required to adopt dunng or at the end of the
previous financial year

Standards adopted early by the group
The group has not adopted any standards or interpretations early 1n ether the current or the preceding financial
year

Interpretations to existing standards and new standards that have been i1ssued but are not yet effective and
have not been adopted by the group

At the date of authonsation of these financtal statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which are
applicable to the activities of the group or the company have not been applied as they were 1n issue but not yet
effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

e IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments™ (effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2015,
once endorsed by the EU) The standard contams new requirements for accounting for financial assets
and habilitzes replacing the corresponding requirements of IAS 39 Fmancial Instrument Recogmition
and Measurement”

e Amendment to [AS 32 “Financial Instruments Presentation” — “Offsetting Financial Assets and
Liabilities” {effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1 January 2014) The amendment
adds gmdance on the meaning of “a legally enforceable nght to set off”, on simultaneous
settlement

e IAS 27 (revised) “Consohdated and Separate Financial Statements™ (applicable 1n the EU for
financial years starting on or after 1 January 2014} The revision retains the existing gumidance on
group reorgamsattons where a new parent entity 1s established and sets out disclosure
requirements 1n separate financial statements

» IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ (effective for annual pertods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017, once endorsed by the EU) The standard requires revenie recognition based
on the consideration the company expects to be entitled to 1n exchange for the transfer of promised
goods or services [t introduces five steps to achieve this, identificaion of the contract(s),
identfication of the performance obligations within the contract(s), determnation of the
transaction price, allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations and recognition
of revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation The standard also enhances
disclosures to provide comprehensive mformation about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertamnty of revenue and cash flows ansing from contracts with customers ”

s Amendment to [AS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”
“Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amorusation™ (effective for annual
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, once endorsed by the EU) Clanfies revenue-based
methods to calculate depreciation charges or amortisation charges are not permitted

e Amendment to IAS 27 “Equity Method 1n Separate Financial Statements” (effective for annual
periods beginming on or after 1 January 2016, once endorsed by the EU) Restores the option to
use the equity method to accounting for investments in subsidianes 1n the entity’s separate
financial statements
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ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAIL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

‘Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle” {effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1
July 2014, once endorsed by the EU) The improvements include amendments to the IFRS 2
“Share-based payments™ definitions of a “market condition”, “performance condition™ and
“service condition”, amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” so all non-equity contingent
consideration 15 measured at fair value through profit or loss and to IFRS 13 “Farr Value
Measurement” to clanfy that short-term receivables and payables need not be discounted if the

effect 1s immatenal

“Improvements to IFRS 2011-2013 Cycle” (effective for annual penods begmning on or after 1
January 2¢14, once endorsed by the EU) The improvements clanfy that the far value
measurement of a group of asset and hiabilities based on the net nisk exposure applies to all
contracts within the scope of [AS 39 “Financial Instruments Recogmtion and Measurement™
mcluding certain contracts to buy or sell non-financial 1items

“Improvements to IFRS 2012-2014 Cycle” (effectrve for annual periods begmmng on or after 1
January 2016, once endorsed by the EUJ) The improvements clanfy that 1n determining the
discount rate appled to the defined benefit obligation and the plan assets in accordance with IAS
19 “Employee Benefits” the presence of a deep market 1n high quahty corporate bonds should be
considered at a currency level as opposed to a country level

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” (applicable i the EU for financial years starting on or
after | January 2014 Amendments have also been made to the transiton gumdance 1n IFRS810) The
standard will replace IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” and SIC 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities” [FRS 10 retams the prineiple of control, but redefines
control and provides further guidance on how to apply the control pnnciple

IFRS 12 “Dnsclosure of Interests tn Other Entities™ (apphicable 1n the EU for financial years starting
onor afier | January 2014 Amendments have also been made to the ransition guidance in IFRS12)
The standard applies to entities that have nterests 1n subsidianes, jomt arrangements, associates and
other unconschdated structured entities and aims to make disclosures 1n respect of such entities
consistent

The impact of IFRS15 wll be considered once the standard has been endorsed by the EU None of the
other standards not yet effective are expected to have a matenal impact on the financral statements of the
group, save that additional disclosures are required

A number of other new amendments and interpretations have been endorsed by the EU as part of adopted
IFRSs, but are not yet effective
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGEMENT

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors including expectations of future events that are beheved 1© be reasonable under the
circumstances

Critical accounting esnmates and assumptions

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates
and assumpuons will, by definition, seldom equate to the subsequent actual results However,
management considers the esttmates and assumptions used 1n the financial statements to be reasonable

Imparrment of goodwiil

The impairment of goodw:ll 1s determined as set out 1n the accounting policies, under “Intangible
Assets” and requires estimates being made 1n relation to future cash flows (note 12) No provision for
impairment was made tn the year (2013 £Nil) and the carrying amount of goodwill in respect of
business combinations at the reporting date was £14 495m (2013- £14 495m)

Professional iability claims
The group estimates the value of professional habihty claims to be the expected cost of defending and
concluding the ongoing claims

Former member commitments

The provision for annuittes and similar arrangements for former members has been independently
valued based on information provided by the group The principal assumptions are disclosed in note 21
The group will continue to review these assumptions aganst the group’s expenence and market data,
and adjustments will be made in future periods where appropnate

Retirement benefits

The trustees make estimates about the range of long-term trends and market conditions to determine the
value of the deficit or surplus on the retirement benefit scheme, based on the trustees’ expectation of the
future and advice from qualified actuanes The pnncipa) assumptions are disclosed in note 31

Long-term forecasts and estimates are necessanly highly judgemental and subject to nsk that actual
cvents may be different to those forecast 1f actual events deviate from the assumptions made then the
reported surplus or deficit in respect to retirement benefits may be matenally different

Share based payments

In valuing the share based payments vanous assumptions are made with regard to the inputs to the
valuation model (note 29) Judgements are also made with regard to the number of awards that are
expected 10 vest taking mnto consideration the expected forfeiture rates

Far value adyustments

In the year the group purchased certain subsidianies of RSM Tenon Group Ple from the admimstrators
(“Tenon acquusitton”) following which fair values have been reviewed The significant items are as
follows

Chent relationships

As part of accounting for business combinations under IFRS3, chent relationships have been valued at
£40 430m In valming chient relationships assumpiions were made regarding chent attntion rates,
revenue projections and returmn on working capital.

Page 30




Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

1

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGEMENT (cortinued)

Amounts recoverable on services

The fair value of amounts recoverable on services acquired on the Tenon acquisiion was reviewed (0
ensure they were valued in hne with the accounting policies of the group  The impact was a reduction
to the imnial net assets acquired of £6 218m

Deferred income tax

At the date of the Tenon acquisition the Tenon subsidianies were recognising a deferred tax asset for
storical tax losses as the group had planned to hive up the trade 1o other trading entities It was
concluded that the tax losses of £11 994m would not be recoverable at the value acquired n the onginal
entities

FINANCIAL RISK

The group’s activities expose It to a vanety of financial nisks including interest rate nisk, credit nsk and
liquidity nsk The group manages these nsks through an effective nisk management programme that
secks to minmmise polential adverse effects on the group’s performance

Exposure to financial nisks 1s momitored by the central finance department under policies approved by
the board An assessment of the risks 1s provided to the board at regular intervals and 1s discussed to
ensure that the nsk mitiganon procedures are compliant with the group policy and that any new nisks
are appropniately managed

Ligquadity risk
The group closely monitors its access to bank and other credit facilities in companison to tts outstanding
commutments on a regular basis to ensure that 1t has sufficient funds to meet the obligations of the
group as they fall due The group has additional undrawn facilities at its disposal to further mitigate
hquidity nsk

Detatled analysts of the debt facthities taken out together with the maturity profile are disclosed in note
17

Credut risk

The group’s credit risk 1s primanly attnbutable to 1ts trade receivables The amounts presented 1n the
statement of financial position are net of allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts The group
has no sigmficant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of clients

Interest rate risk

The group’s borrowings and any surplus cash balances are held at floating nterest rates linked to
LIBOR and the Base Rate The group’s pohcy requires that financing be undertaken without creating
significant interest exposure All group borrowings are at floating rates, and the terms are set out n note
17

The effect on the profit before tax and equity of a movement 1n interest rates of one percentage point
would be approximately £0.350m (2013 £0.025m)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The group manages its capital to ensure that entities n the group will be able to continue as going
concerns, whilst maximising the returns to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed 1n
note 17, and equity attributable to owners of the parent, comprising 1ssued share capital, reserves and
retained earmangs as disclosed in notes 23 to 28

Page 31




Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

4

REVENUE
Class of business

Contnuing operations,
Audit and assurance
Corporate finance
Restructunng and recovery
Tax and advisory

Rusk advisory

Other

2014 2013
£000 £000
66,031 53,855
16,389 12,131
27,431 23,985
107,241 75,809
14,524 -
2,319 869
233,935 166,649

As the group’s revenue 1s denved prineipally from 1ts operations 1n the United Kingdom, no secondary

revenue analysts 1s presented

OPERATING PROFIT
Operaung profit 1s stated after charging

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Charge for the year
Owned asscts
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services (parent and consclidated accounts)
Audit services (subsidianes pursuant to legislation)
Operating lease rentals
Land and buildings
Other

2014
£°000

5,101
464
1,844

50
225

9,697
79

2013
£'000

3,169
1,098
740

25
142

6,838
39
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5

OPERATING PROFIT {continued)

Cost of sales and adminisirative expenses include

Employee and members costs (note 8)
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment charges and loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Chent disbursements

Employee recruitment and development
Property including operating leases

IT and other equipment

Business development and advertising
Professional fees and related insurance costs
Travel costs

Other general expenses

Included within cost of sales and adminustranve expenses are exceplional
1tems

Employee and members costs
Administrative expenses

Following the acquisition of certain subsidiaries of RSM Tenon Group Plc from the admimstrators n the
year, the group has incurred exceptional costs  These relate to projects to reduce headcount and exit certain

2014 2013
£7000 £7000
163,608 103,639
7,419 5,007
12,382 7,878
5,221 5,787
15,348 14,504
4,300 4,143
2,619 2,512
9,636 8,984
10,739 3,877
2,424 4,436
233,696 160,767
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
2,075 .
972 -
3,047 )

properties The group also incurred legal and other costs 1n relation to the acquisition

FINANCE INCOME

Mividends received

Bank mterest receivable

Other interest receivable

Expected return on pension scheme assets 10 excess of
mnterest on pension liabilhities/(asset) (note 31)

FINANCE COSTS

On bank loans and overdrafis
Dividend on preferred ordinary shares
Unwinding of discount on provisions

2014 2013
£000 £000
(restated)
B 4
161 157
109 140
73 311
35! 612
2014 2013
£000 £'000
1,156 223
145 124
374 532
1,675 879
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8

EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS 2014 2013
Number Number

The average monthly number of employees (including directors) and
members of the group dunng the year was

Directors and management 13 13
Audit and assurance 1,252 526
Corporate finance 149 98
Restructunng and recovery 386 195
Tax and advisory 901 670
Rask advisory 304 -
Support 602 293
3,607 1,793
2014 2013
£000 £'000

Remuneration for the above persons
Remuneration 148,613 95,226
Social securtty costs 10,381 6,020
Pension costs — group personal pension plan 3,099 2,024
Share based payments — employees (note 20) 352 369
Share based payments — members (note 29) 1,163 -
163,608 103,639

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, relates to short-
term employee benefits

2014 2013
£000 £ 000

Remuneration of directors
Aggregate remuneration 3,833 2,337
Remuneration of the highest paid director 735 337

No coninbutions were made to the group’s pension scheme during the year for the directors, nor did
they receive any share based payments (2013- £Ni11) No benefits are accruing under the defined benefit
scheme to the directors (2013 £Nil)
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9

TAXATION

The taxation charge which anses 1n the corporate entities included within these financial statements 15 as

follows

Current tax

UK corporation tax payable on resuits for the year
Adjustments 1n respect of prior year

Transfer pricing reimbursement 1n respect of current year

Total current tax (credit)/charge

Deferred tax (note 30)

Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments mn respect of prior year

Effect of decreased rate on opening asset

Total deferred tax credit

Tax attnbutable to the company and 1ts subsichanes

UK corporation tax 1s calculated at 23% (2013 24%]) on the assessable profit for the year

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax as follows

Profit before tax

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 23% (2013 24%)
EiTecs of

Expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes

Profit not subject to tax

Adjustments to tax charge 1n respect of previous year
Movement in unprovided deferred tax

Effect of change i deferred tax rate

Movements 1n share incentive plan

Utilisation of tax losses

Tax charge

2014 2013
£ 000 £000
61 1,332
(126) (220}
(202) 411
(267) 701
(3,402) {305)
78 -
(134) (42)
(3,458) (347)
(3,725) 354
2014 2013
£000 £000
(restated)
11,890 5,615
2014 2013
£°000 £000
2,735 1,348
12,657 349
(1,531) (1,124)
(48) (220)
(2,909 190
52 (42)
- (147)
(14,681) -
(3,723) 354

Certain tax adjustments arsing in the group’s mterests in the LLPs are the responsibiiity of the individuat

members

As a result of the change in the UK corporation tax rate from 23% to 21%, that was substantively enacted
on 2 fuly 2013 and which tock effect from | Aprl 2014, the relevant deferred tax balances have been re-

measured

The company has tax losses carned forward of £55 756m (2013 £MNil), a deferred tax asset of £1 234m

(2013 £Nl) has been recogmsed 1n respect of these losses
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10 DIVIDENDS — ORDINARY SHARES

Final dividends were paid m 2014 and 2013 of £2 368m (3.6p per share) and £2 295m (3 5p per share)

respectively

A dividend 1n respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 of 3 75p per share, amounting to a total dividend
of £2 5m, 1s 1o be proposed at the shareholder meeting on 16 December 2014 These financial statements

do not reflect this dividend as a payable

11  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Company

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Current,
Trade and other recetvables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Loans and  Loans and
recevables receivables

2014 2013

£7000 £°000

116 -

36 1,152

152 1,152

The maximum exposure to credit rsk in respect of the financial assets 1s the carrying amount

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current,
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

Non-current,
Other payables

Total

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
19,006 2,916
1,871 302
20,877 3.218
45 85

45 85
20,922 3,303
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11

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)
Group
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans and  Avaiable- Loans and Available-
recervables Jor-sale Total recervables Jor-sale Total
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
£000 £000 £000 £7000 £000 £000
Non-current,
investments - 113 113 - 109 109
Trade and other
receivables 204 - 204 772 - 772
204 113 317 772 109 8Bl
Current,
Trade and other
receivables 88,145 - 88,145 63,179 - 63,179
Cash and cash
equivalents 7,957 - 7,957 11,138 - 11.138
96,102 - 96,102 74,317 - 74,317
Total 96,306 113 96,419 75,089 109 75,198
The maximum exposure to credit nsk i respect of the financial assets is the carrying amount
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
2014 2013
£ 000 £000
Current,
Borrowings 20,006 5,719
Trade and other payables 50,122 29,079
70,128 34,798
Non-current,
Borrowings 18,250 6,500
Other payables 8,712 6,487
26,962 12,987
Total 97,090 47,785
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Company Chent
Goodwill relationships Total
£°000 £000 £ 000
Cost
1 Aprd 2012 14,482 - 14,482
On acquisitions 13 13
31 March 2013 14,495 - 14,495
On acquisiions - 39,460 39,460
31 March 2014 14,495 39,460 53,955
Group
Software
rnights and
Chent Restricuive computer
Goodwili  relanionships  covenants software  Trademarks Total
£000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £7000 £000
Cost
1 Apnl 2012 14,564 3,407 414 3,489 233 22,107
Additions - - - 5 57 62
On acquisition i3 114 - - - 127
31 March 2013 14,577 3,521 414 3,494 200 22,296
Additions - 80 - 3 79 162
On acqusition
(notc 15) : 40,430 . ; - 40430
31 March 2014 14,577 44,031 414 3,497 369 62,888
Amounts
written off
1 Apnl 2012 82 3,009 192 2,477 4 5,764
Amortisation - 408 48 628 14 1,098
31 March 2013 82 3417 240 3,105 18 6,862
Amortisauon - k)| 49 273 i5 368
Impairment - - - - 96 96
31 March 2014 82 3,448 289 3,378 129 7,326
Net book vatue
31 March 2014 14,495 40,583 125 119 240 55,562
31 March 2013 14,495 104 174 389 272 15,434
1 Apnl 2012 14,482 398 222 1,012 229 16,343
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS {continued)
Group
All amortisation has been charged within admunistrative expenses

Goodwill
Goodwill anses on acquisiions where the fair value of the consideration given for the business
exceeds the fair value of assets acquired and liabilines assumed

Following acquisition of a business, the directors have tdentified the mdividual CGUs acquired and,
where possible, allocated the underiying assets acquired and liabihties assumed to each of those
CGUs These CGUs were then integrated within similar existing CGUSs bemg the existing trading
entities

The directors considered the allocation of goodwll to these combined CGUs and groups of CGUs
and concluded that any allocation would be arbatrary

The directors have considered the carrying value of the goodwill by assessing whether key staff
within the acquired businesses have been retained and are satisfied that the value attributable to
goodwill for individual businesses acquired 15 1n excess of carrying value and no impairment 1s

required The goodwill attnbutable to synergies is not deemed to be signsficant
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13

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost

1 Apnl 2012
Additions
Disposals

31 March 2013
Additions
Acquisitions
Dnsposals

31 March 2014

Depreciation

1 Apnit 2012
Charge 1n the year
Disposals

31 March 2013
Charge 1n the year
Disposals

31 March 2014

Net book value
31 March 2014

31 March 2013

1 April 2012

Land
and

buildings
£000

337

265

265

265

Furniture
Leasehold  and office  Computer Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
£000 £°000 £000 £000 £7000
- 20,878 3,214 5,248 29,677
- 4,085 486 1,402 5,973
- (3,702) (1,574) {1,620) (6,896)
- 21,261 2,126 5,030 28,754
- 2,500 420 2,519 5,439
945 195 3,606 - 4,746
(42) (88) (4,202) (1,625) (5,957)
903 23,868 1,950 5,924 32,982
- 11,054 2,920 3,208 17,254
- 1,882 324 963 3,169
- (2,813) (1,574) (949) (5,336)
- 10,123 1,670 3,222 15,087
409 2,233 1,222 1,237 5,101
(26) 79 (2,145) (1,025) (3,275)
383 12,277 747 3,434 16,913
520 11,591 1,203 2,490 16,069
- 11,138 456 1,808 13,667
- 9,824 254 2,040 12,423

Assets are transferred between Group enuties at net book value
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (confinued)

Company

Cost

1 Apnl 2012
Addiions
Disposals

31 March 2013
Acquisttions
Addinons

Disposals
Intra-group transfers

31 March 2014

Depreciation

1 Apnl 2012
Charge in the year
Disposals

31 March 2013
Charge 1n the year
Intra-group transfers
31 March 2014

Net book value
31 March 2014

31 March 2013

1 Apnl 2012

Furature
and office Computer
equipment  equipment Total
£°000 £000 £'000
195 3,606 3,801
2 30 32
@) {2,059) {2,066)
(190) {1,577) (1,767)
139 799 938
(139) {799) (938)
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14

INVESTMENTS
Company
Subsidiary
undertakings
£000
Cost
1 Apnl 2012 59,794
Addinons 369
31 March 2013 60,163
Addmmons 23,164
31 March 2014 83,327
Provisions
1 Apnl 2012 5,755
Imparment {note 26) (112)
31 March 2013 and 3t March 2014 5,643
Net book value
31 March 2014 77,684
31 March 2013 54,520
1 Apnl 2012 54,039

The directors have previously recognised an impairment of the 1nvestment 1t Arrandco Investments
Lirmted which 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the company The impairment wnte back 1n the year
ended 31 March 2013 arose due to the results 1n that sub-group and the resulting improvement on future
cash flows

The directors have considered the carrying value of the other investments i subsidianes and are
satisfied that their recoverable amounts are 1n excess of their carrying value
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14 INVESTMENTS (continued}
Group

Cost or valuation
1 Apnl 2012
Increase 1n fair value

31 March 2013
Increase 1n fair value

31 March 2014

Provisions
1 Apnl 2012

31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014

Net book value
31 March 2014

31 March 2013

1 Apnl 2012

Avatlable-
Jor-sale
investments

£°000

69
40

109
4

113

69

The fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on either the surrender or market value using
the quoted prices of those mvestments in active markets Consequently, such mvestments fall within
“Level 17 of the fair value hierarchy The market value of listed investments 1s £0 113m (2013

£0 109m)

Page 43



Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

14

INVESTMENTS (continued)

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidianes will be of
excessive length and therefore the following list contains only the particulars of the company’s
subsidianies. all of which are registered 1n the Umited Kingdom, as at 31 March 2014 which
principally affect the results or assets of the Group

Limited Liability Partnerships

Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited 1s, directly or indirectly, a member of the following LLPs

Baker Tilly UK Group LLP - Holding LLP

Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP -~ Audit assurance services

Baker Tilly Corporate Finance LLP — Corporate finance services

Baker Tilly Restructunng and Recovery LLP — Restructuring and recovery services
Baker Tilly Tax and Adwvisory Services LLP — Tax and advisory services

Baker Tilly Executive Services LLP — Management services

CESTO LLP — Financial management outsourcing solutions

Baker Tilly Risk Adwvisory Services LLP —Rusk advisery services

Baker Tilly Creditor Services LLP — Creditor services

Proportion
Classof  directly
holding  held Nature of business
Subsidiary Undertakings
Arrandco Investments Ltd Ordinary 100% Intermediate holding company
Baker Tilly Tax and Accounting Ltd Ordinary 100% Tax, accounting, advisory
and employment services
Arrandco Business Services Lid* Ordinary 100% Tax, accounting, advisory
and restructuring services
Baker Tilly CF Limited Ordinary 100% Corporate finance services
Baker Tilly Corporate Transactions Ltd ~ Ordinary  100% Regulated corporate finance
services
Owned by Arrandco Investments Lid
Aasrandco Properties Lid Ordinary 100% Property interests
Baker Tilly Management Ltd Ordinary 100% Employment and property
services
Baker Tilly & Co Ltd Ordinary  100% Regulated investment advice
and services
Debt Lifeboat Ltd Ordinary 100% Individual Voluntary
Arrangements
Baker Tilly Revas Ltd Ordinary  100% Onhine accounting, payroll
and other services
Baker Tally Insurance Services Ltd Ordinary  106% Insurance broking
Arrandco Products Ltd Ordinary 87% Intermediate holding company
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Owned by Arrandco Products Ltd
HWL Innovation Limited Ordinary  100% Software and consultancy

Owned by Arrandco Financial

Marnagement Ltd
RSM Group (UK) Limited Ordinary 100% Intermediate holding company
Baker Tilly Investment Solutions Ltd* Ordinary  100% Financizl management services

Owned by RSM Group (UK) Limited
Baker Tilly Financial Management L.td*  Ordinary 100% Financial management services

Beneficially owned by Baker Tilly UK
Audit LLP
Baker Tilly Audit Limited Ordmnary 100% Audit Assurance services

*denotes ceased trading since the year-end due to hive-up or sale

The following subsidiary companies are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
( ‘the Act’ ) refating to the audit of their individual accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Act
* Subsidiary companies conditions for exemption from audit

Baker Thlly Executive Services LLP
Arrandco Products Ltd

HWL Innovation Ltd

Mutual One Ltd

Baker Tilly Overseas Limited

All subsidianes are included 1n the consolidated financial statements and have accounting reference
dates of 31 March

Baker Tilly Risk Advisory Services LLP and Baker Tilly Creditor Services LLP were incorporated 1n
the year, but did not start to trade untl after the year-end The first period they will be audited 1s that
to 31 March 2015
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PURCHASE OF BUSINESSES

Group
On 2 September 2013 the group acquired the entire share capital of RSM Tenon Limited and RSM

Tenon Audit Limited, businesses that provided advisory, accounting, tax, audit and nisk advisory

S€rvices

RSM Tenon Group Pl the holding company of RSM Tenon Limited and 1ts subsidianes was 1n
administration at the date of acquisiion  The fair value of the identifiable net assets was greater than
the total considerahon paid, creating negative goodwill on acquisiton  The negative goodwill 15
recognised as & gan on acquisttion within the Income statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

The acquisition was consistent with the group’s continuing growth strategy  The transaction has been
accounted for by the acqusition method of accounting

A summary of the assets and liabihities acquired 15 as follows
Fair value

Inmtnal Fairvalue at date of
book value adjustments  acquisithon
£000 £°000 £000
Goodwill 55,302 (55,302) -
Intangible assets - 40,430 40,430
Tangble assets 5,210 (464) 4,746
Trade and other recetvables 73,012 (15,935) 57,077
Cash and cash equivalents 2,511 - 2,511
Trade and other payables (50,966) (800) (51,766)
Provisions (11,551) (5,659 (17,210)
73,518 (37,730) 35,788
Gain on acquisition recogmsed 1in the income -
statement (12,975)
Tolal consideration 22,813
2014
Consideration represented by £°000
Cash pad 22,813
2014
£000
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition,
Cash consideration 22,813
Cash and cash equivalents acquired net of bank overdraft (2,511)
20,302

Acquisition costs incurred of £0 496m have been included within exceptional admimstrative expenses

It 1s impractical to provide details of the revenue and profit contributed since the acquisition date or the
revenue and profit as if the acquisition had occurred at } Apnt 2013, since the businesses acquired
have been mtegrated into existing trading entities and service hnes of the Group
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Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£°000 £ 000 £000 £°000
CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts recoverable on services 21,667 15,827 - -
Trade receivables 56,887 37,891 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 26,386 5,170
Due from members of subsidiary LLPs - 7,251 - -
Other receivables 9,591 2,210 116 -
Prepayments and accrued ncome 11,979 6,183 - 4
160,124 69,362 26,502 5,174

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other recervables 204 772 - -
100,328 70,134 26,502 5,174

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to therr fair
values and 15 the maximumn exposure to credut risk  Other receivables include £0 540m (2013
£0 716m) of investment bonds which mature over the next 5 years and which attract interest at 4% The
fair value accruing to the group at 31 March 2014 1s esumated to be £0 732m (2013 £0 932m)

Trade recervables

An allowance has been made for estimated trrecoverable amounts from trade receivables of

£3 849m (2013 £2 361m) The group’s policy 1s to provide for all debts to the extent that they may
not be recoverable determined by review on a client by client basis

A detalled review of the credit guality of each client 1s completed before an engagement commences
and the concentration of credit risk 15 lirmited, as exposure 1s spread over a large number of clients

The age of and maximum credit risk relating to trade recewvables 1s analysed as follows

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £'000 £°000 £000
30 days or less, fully performing 37,167 26,224 - -
Over 30 days 23,569 14,028 - -
Impairment provision (3,849) (2,361) - -

56,887 37,891 - -

The other classes of assets within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets
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BORROWINGS
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£7000 £000 £000 £°000
CURRENT
Bank loans 16,640 2,803 15,640 -
Preferred ordinary shares (note 24) 3,366 2,916 3,366 2,916
20,006 5,719 19,006 2,916
NON-CURRENT -
Bank loans 18,250 6,500 - -
The borrowings are repayable as follows Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£7000 £7000 £000 £000
Within one year 20,720 5,755 19,491 2,916
Between one and two years 11,526 522 - -
In the second to fifth years inclusive 3,452 6,358 - -
Greater than five years 4.489 - - -
40,187 12,635 19,491 2,916
Less future interest charges (1,931) (416) (485) -
38,256 12,219 19,006 2,916
Less amounts due for settlement within
one year (shown under current abilities) (20,006) (5,719) (19,006) (2,916)
Amounts due for settlement after one year 18,250 6,500 - -
The werghted average interest rates paid were
% % % %
Bank loans 308 237 439

Bank loans and overdrafts

The bank loans are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the group to cash flow interest rate risk
The directors estimate that the fair value of the group’s current borrowings s not sigmficantly
different to the carrying value These valuations fall to be classed as *level 27 of the farr value
hierarchy Bank loans totalling £16 2m are secured by fixed and floating charges over the group's
assets with the remaming borrowings being unsecured All borrowings take preference for repayment
over amounts due to members of subsidiary LLPs in the event of winding up Since the balance sheet
date all security has been released as the £16 2m loan facility was repaid in ful!

The pnncipal features of the group’s borrowings are as follows

Bank loans totalling £35 45m (2013 £9 303m) are repayable by a mixture of quarterly and annual
mnstallments between Apnl2014 and Apnil 2023 Interest 1s charged on these loans at 2 1%to 4 61%
over LIBOR

The bank overdraft facilities are subject to annual review and are unsecured lnterestis charged on any
bank overdraft at 1 4% to | 5% over the Base Rate

Page 48




Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

17

19

BORROWINGS (continued)
The group had £9m (2013 £14m) of unutilised bank facilities at 1ts disposal at the year-end

Preferred ordinary shares

These relate to the purchase of preferred ordinary shares by employees from the Trustees of the Baker
Tilly UK Holdings Limited Share Incentive Plan on a “buy one, get one free’ basis Details of the
plan are detailed in notes 24 and 29 Preferred ordinary shareholders are entitled to a guaranteed
annual dividend of at least 5 umes the nominal value of the shares

CURRENT LIABILITIES —- TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Payments received on account 4,533 4,148 -
Trade payables 6,340 2,783 - -
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 76,577 31,430
Due to members of subsichary LLPs 23,951 18,375 - -
Due to former members 1,766 1,991 - -
Other taxauon and social secunty 13,835 8,930 - -
Other payables 6,176 1,769 1,673 104
Accruals and deferred income 13,622 4,206 168 198

70,163 42,202 78,448 31,732

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - OTHER PAY ABLES

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£ 000 £000 £°000 £°000
Other payables 8,712 6,487 45 85
8,712 6,487 45 85
Amounts payable as follows
Within one year 6,176 1,769 1,673 104
Between one and two years 651 408 15 40
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,920 1,753 30 45
After {ive years 6,141 4,326 - -
14,888 8,256 1,718 189
Less amounts due for settlement within one
year (shown under current habilities) (6,176) (1,769) (1,673) {104)
Amounts due for settlement after one year 8,712 6,487 45 85

The 2013 Group comparatve figure has been reclassified to more closely reflect the timing of the
release of rent free periods under certain property leases The financial effect has been to decrease
accruals and deferred income within current liabilities by £6 402m and increase other payables
within non-current liabiliies by the same amount
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21

CASH-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENT LIABILITIES

Group and Company 2014 2013
£000 £000
1 Apnl 1,054 747
Charged to profit or loss for the year {note 8) 351 369
Exercised by employees (1i1) (61)
Withdrawn from the scheme by employees - m
31 March 1,294 1,054
Included 1n current habihities 1,202 900
Included in non-current habthties 92 154
1,294 1,054
PROVISIONS
Group Professional Former
hability Surplus member
clmms property  commiments Total
£000 £000 £000 £°000
1 April 2013 6,958 6,641 5.493 19,092
Acquired during year 12,570 4,640 - 17,210
Utihsed dunng year (9,233} (5,973) (905) {16,111)
Charged/(credsted) to profit and
loss
- Add:tional provisions 2,480 3,405 - 5,885
- Unused amounts reversed - (730) (422) (1,152)
- Unwinding of discount - 157 217 174
- Change in discount - (286) 346 60
rate/assumptions
31 March 2014 12,775 7,854 4,729 25,358
2014 2013
£°000 £000
[ncluded 1n current habihities 12,275 6,840
Included 1n non-current habihties 13,083 12,252
25,358 19,092

Professional liability claims

The professional hability claims represent the estimated cost of defending and concluding claims.
Where the group expects some or all of a provision to be resmbursed, the reimbursement 1s recogrused
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement 1s virtually certain The expense relating to any
provision 1s presented in the income statement net of any expected rembursement
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22

PROVISIONS (continued)

Surplus property

The surplus property provision 1s provided to cover the expected losses on sublet and vacant properties
where expected benefits are less than the unavoidable costs The remaining lease terms are berween
one and four years The provision has been estimated using current costs and has been discounted 1o
present value at a rate of 4 5% (2013 4 7%)

Former member commitments
The former members provision has been actuarially calculated and 1s the present value of the future
obligation of the group to provide retirement annutites and simitar arrangements to former members

The pnncipal actuarial assumptions which have been used 1n calculating the habilwes, afier the
application of mortality rates, are as follows

2014 2013

Per annum Per annum

Discount rate 4 5% 4 7%
Infiation rate 3 3% 34%

Any movements mn former members’ commitments are mcluded within administrative expenses

HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Group

The trade of the Financial Management businesses were sold after the balance sheet date (note 36)
No assets or habilities were sold and therefore are not held for sale at the balance sheet date.

Analysis of the results of discontinued operations and the result recogrised on the disposal group 1s
as follows

2014 2013

£000 £°000
Revenue 11,197 -
Cxpenses {12,551) -
Loss before tax of discontinued operations (1,354) -
Taxation (121} -
Loss after tax of discontinued operations (1,475) -

— =
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23 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

Group and Company
2014 2013
£7000 £°000
Authonised
180,000,000 ordinary shares of | pence each 1,800 1,800
(2013 180,000,000)
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid
Share
Number Ordinary premium
of shares shares accournt Total
(thousands) £'000 £°000 £000
1 Apnl 2012 66,975 670 10,449 11,119
Ordinary shares 1ssued (note 25) 182 2 198 200
Preferred ordinary shares acquired by
and granted to employees (see below
and note 24) - - (530) (530)
31 March 2013 67,157 672 10,117 10,789
Ordinary shares 1ssued (note 25) 25 - 25 25
Preferred ordinary shares acquired by
and granted to employees (see below
and note 24) - - {445) (445)
31 March 2014 67,182 672 9,697 10,369

In October 2013 25,000 ordinary shares of 1p each were 1ssued at a premuum of 99p as part
consideranion for the Miles & Partners Consulting LLP acquisitton which occurred in the year
ended 31 March 2013

The preferred ordinary shares acquired by and granted to employees relate to the purchase of preferred
ordinary shares by employees from the Trustees of the Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited Share
Incentive Plan on a “buy one, get one free” basis (note 29)
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PREFERRED ORDINARY SHARES AND SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN SHARES

Group and Company
Preferred ordinary shares

The year to 31 March 2014 was the fifth year in which employees were invited to purchase preferred
ordmary shares from the Trustees of the Baker Tally UK Holdings Limited Share Incentive Plan on a
“buy one, get one free” basis

Preferred ordmnary shareholders are entitled to a guaranteed annual dividend of at least 5 umes the
nomunal vaiue of the shares However, the Trustees waived their nght to any dividend on shares not
1ssued to staff Dividends paid dunng the year are included in Finance Costs (note 7)

Preferred ordinary shareholders have no voting rights nor are they permutted to attend meetings of the
company

Other than the above, the preferred ordinary shares and ordinary shares rank pan passu

2014 2013
£000 £000

Authonsed
20,000,000 preferred ordinary shares of 1p each 200 200

Shares beneficially held by the Trustees of the Baker Tilly UK Holdmgs Limited Share Incentive Plan,
classified as equity, are as follows

Share
Number  Nominal premium
of shares value account Total

(thousands) £°000 £000 £°000
1 Apnl 2012 5,619 56 5,563 5,619
Transactions for the year
Acquired by and granted to employees (813) (8) (805) (813}
Repurchased from employees 140 1 139 140
Forfeited by employees 76 1 75 76
Exercised by employees 61 - 61 61
Transferred to current borrowings (note
17 (536) (6) {530) (536)
31 March 2013 5,083 50 5,033 5,083
Transactions for the year
Acquired by and granted to employees (828) (8) (820) (828)
Repurchased from employees 189 2 187 189
Forfeited by employees 79 1 78 79
Exercised by employees 111 1 110 111
Transferred to current borrowings (note
17) (449) ) (445) (449)
31 March 2014 4,634 46 4,588 4,634

—  oEwr—ae
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24 PREFERRED ORDINARY SHARES AND SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN SHARES (continued)

The maximum number of preferred ordinary shares held by the Trustees of the Baker Tally UK
Holdings Share Incentive Plan dunng the year was £5 35m (2013 £5 756m)

The total number of the called-up preferred ordinary shares 1s 8,000,000 (2013 8,000,000)

The preferred ordinary shares are held by the Trustees of the Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited Share

Incentive Plan until such shares are acquired by and granted to employees
Group and Company
Share Incentive Plan shares

Movement 1n own shares held

Number Cost

(thousands) £000

1 Apni 2012 {(6,799) (6,799)
Acquired by employees 407 407

Repurchased from employees (140) (140)
Withdrawn from the scheme by employees 1 1

31 March 2013 (6,531) (6,531)
Acquired by employees 414 414

Repurchased from employees (189) (189)

31 March 2014 (6,306) (6,306)

Of the above shares, 1,672,000 shares (2013 1,448,000 shares) are held by the Trustees of the Baker
Tilly UK Holdings Limuted Share Incentive Plan on behalf of members and represent matching free

shares to be vested over the next three years (note 29)

25 SHARES TO BE ISSUED
Group and Company
2014 2013
£°000 £'000
I Apnl 2013 50 200
Shares 1ssued dunng the year (note 23) (25) (200)
Shares to be 1ssued relating to acquisiion of subsidiary undertakings
and busmesses (note 15) - 50
Shares to be 1ssued to members {note 29) 1,180 -
31 March 2014 1,205 50
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27

28

MERGER RESERVE

Company 2014
£000

1 April 2012 11,214

Transfer from retained eamings 1n respect of the reversal of investment

impairment 112

31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 11,326

The impairment reversal anses in relanon to Arrandco Investments Limited as detailed in note 14

REVALUATION RESERVE
Group Available-
Jor-sale
tnvestments
£7000
1 April 2012 69
Revaluation surplus on available-for-sale investments 40
31 March 2013 109
Revaluation surplus on available-for-sale investments 4
31 March 2014 113
RETAINED EARNINGS
Group Company
£'000 £°000
(restated)
1 Apnl 2012 30,788 24,737
Profit for the year 5,261 77
Equity dividends paid (note 10) (2,295) (2,295)
Actuanal loss on defined benefit obhigations (note 31) (8,912) -
Transfer of mvestment impairment to merger reserve (note 26) - (112)
31 March 2013 24,842 22,407
Profit for the year 14,140 22,727
Equity dividends paid (note 10) (2,368) (2,368)
Actuanal loss on defined benefit obligattons (note 31) (3,001) -
31 March 2014 33,613 42,766
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SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
Employees

The group s Share Incentive Plan (SIP) provides eligible employees with the opportunity to purchase
preferred ordinary shares in Baker Thlly UK Holdings Limited on a “buy one, get one free” basis

The matching free shares are forfeited if the employee leaves the service of the group under certain
conditions, within three years of the matching free shares being awarded, or when the employee
withdraws their purchased shares within three years of the date of their acquisition

Movements 1n the number of SIP matching shares outstanding and their weighted average exercise
price are as follows

Price per

Number Cost Share

(thousands) £000 £

1 Apnl 2012 1,179 1,179 1
Granted during the year 407 407 1
Forfeited during the year (76) (76) 1
Exercised duning the year (61) 61) 1
Withdrawn from the scheme by employees 1) H 1
31 March 2013 1,448 1,448 1
Granted during the year 414 414 1
Forfeuted dunng the year (79) (79) 1
Exercised duning the year (111) (111} 1
31 March 2014 1,672 1,672 1

The share incentives outstanding at 31 March 2014 had a weighted average remaining contractual hife
of three years The fair value of the share based payments granted dunng the year was £0 414m (2013
£0 407m) determined by using a valuation model which 1s determined by an external third party The
share price on the date exercised was £1 (2013 £1)

The total intrinsic value at the end of the year relating to those matching shares that have vested dunng
the year amounts to £0 277m (2013 £0 346m)

Members

The group operates a Members Share Scheme whereby, 1n consideration for surrendening part of their
performance based profit share to the parent, the parent wall 1ssue ordinary shares to the member on a
“buy one, get one free” basis provided that the member remains with the group throughout the three
year vesting pennod Dunng the year, members subscribed for i 7m ordinary shares which were 1ssued
following the year-end
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DEFERRED TAX
Company
2014 2013
£000 £000
Deferred tax habilizes
- Amounts due to be settled after one year 1,212 1,468
Deferred tax assets
- Amounts due to be recovered after one year (1,234) -
(22) 1,468
The movement 1n the year 1o the company’s net deferred tax position was as follows
2014 2013
£7000 £ 000
1 Apnl 2013 1,468 1,727
Credited to profit or loss for the year (1,490) (259)
31 March 2014 (22) 1,468

The following are the major deferred tax habilines/(assets) recogmsed by the company, and the

movements thereon, durng the year

Accelerated
tax SIP

depreciation  Tax losses contribution Total
£'000 £°000 £7000 £°000
I Apnl 2012 96 - 1,631 1,727
Credited to profit or loss for the year 21 (71) (209) (259)
1 April 2013 117 (71} 1,422 1,468
Credited to profit or loss for the year 17 (1,163) (210) (1,490)
31 March 2014 - (1,234) 1,212 (22)
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Group

Analysis for financial reporting purposes

Deferred tax habilities

- Amounts due to be settled after one year

Deferred tax assets

- Amounts due to be recovered within one year

- Amounts due to be recovered afier one year

Net position at 31 March 2014

2014
£000
1,216

(2,409)
(1,664)

(2,857)

The movement 1n the year n the group’s net deferred tax position was as follows

1 Apnl 2013
Acqutred

Credited to profit or loss for the year {note 9)

31 March 2014

Group

2014
£000

903
(424)
(3,336)

(2,857)

e

2013
£000

1,422

(515;)

903

2013
£'000

1,250

(34’;)

903

The following are the major deferred tax habiliues/(assets) recogmsed by the group, and the
movements thereon, during the year

1 Apnl 2012
Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss for the
year

31 March 2013
Acquired
Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss for the
year
Charged/(credited) to
discontinued loss for
the year

31 March 2014

Accelerated
tax

deprecration
£°000

(28)

(252)

(280)
(17

13

(6)
(290)

Tax
losses Other
£°000 £ 000
(272) (81)
146 (32)
(126) (113)
(407) -
(3,281) 20
128 -
(3,686) (93)

SIP
contribution Total
£°000 £'000
1,631 1,250
(209) 347)
1,422 %03
- (424)
(210) (3,438)
- 122
1,212 (2,857)
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n RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Group personal pension plan

A group personal pension plan 1s 1 operation and 1s open to all employees of the group The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the company 1 an mdependently admimstered fund The
pension cost charged represents contnibutions payable by the company and amounted te £3 099m
(2613 £2 024m) Conmbuuons totalhing £0 836m (2013 £0 459m) were payable to the fund at the
year-end and are included 1n trade and other payables

Defined benefit scheme

The group operates a defined benefit scheme (“the Scheme”) for ehgible employees The Scheme was
closed to new members and future acerual on 31 March 2010 and deferred pensions were granted to all
members who were sull active members on the date of closure

Any future contributions required to be made to the Scheme are determined by a qualified actuary on
the basis of regular valuations using the deferred accrued benefits method, the most recent completed
full actuanal valuation being at 31 March 2013

The major assumptions used by the independent actuary were
At 31 March At 31 March

2014 2013

% %

Rate of increase n salanies n/a n/a
Rate of increase 1n pensions 1n payment 37 34
Discount rate 45 47
Inflation assumption (RPI) 33 34
Stawtory revaluation (CPI) 23 19
Mortality As below As below
Expected return on plan assets As below As below

The assumption for post-retirement mortality has been set to be in Iine with the standard S1PA tables,
which 15 consistent with the assumption adopted for the last formal actuanal valuation of the Scheme as
at 31 March 2013 Future :improvements 1n longevity are assumed to be 1n line with the CMI 2012
projections, with a long term rate of improvement of 1 5% p a for males and 1 25% p a for females

The assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return were

Rate of Rate of
return at Value at retum at Value at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2014 2014 2013 2013
% £ 000 % £000
Equities 74 97,453 74 90,893
Corporate bonds 44 10,963 432 10,886
Cash 13 200 30 158
Tolal fair value of scheme assets 108,616 101,937
Present value of scheme lLiabihties (108,618} (101,716)

Net pension {deficit)/asset recogmsed 1n the statement
of financial position (2) 221
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X3

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Movements in the fairr value of scheme assets were as follows

1 Apnl 2013

Interest on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Return on plan assets excluding interest income

31 March 2014

2014
£ 000

101,937
4820
2,705

(1,469)
623

108,616

Movements 1n the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows

1 April 2013
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuanal loss

31 March 2014

2014
£000

101,716

4,747
(1,469)

3,624

108,618

2013
£000
(restated)

91,227
4,576
2,600

(2,003)
5,537

101,937

2013
£000

85,005
4,265
(2,003)
14,449

101,716

The expected return on assets 1s based on a proportion of long-term investment returns for each asset
class, less an allowance for management charges The calculation incorporates the expected return on

risk free investments and the historical nsk premum associated with other invested assets

Analysis of amount credited to finance income

Interest on plan assets
Interest on pension scheme habihties

Net return

The actual retumn on scheme assets was £5 443m (2013 £10 113m)

Analysts of amount recogmised in other comprehensive income

Return on plan assets excluding miterest income

Expenence gains and losses ansing on scheme habilities

Changes 1n assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme
hrabilities

Actuanal loss recogmsed

2014
£000

4,820
(4,747

73

e

2014
£ 000

623
8,692

(12,316)

(3,001)

2013
£000
(restated)

4,576
(4,265)

311

T cers—nam

2013
£°000
(restated)

5,537
(1,916)

(12,533)

(8,912)
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31 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Movement n (deficit)/surplus during the year

Surplus 1n scheme a1 beginning of the year
Movement in year

Employer contnibutions

Interest on plan assets

Interest on penston scheme habilities
Actuanal loss

(Deficit)/surplus 1n scheme at end of the year

2014 2013
£°000 £ 000
221 6,222
2,705 2,600
4,820 4,576
(4,747)  (4,265)
(3,001) (8,912)
) 221

Group contnbuntons of £2 7Tm (2012 £2 6m) were pard dunng the year and the group has committed to
contnbute £2 8m during the following year No contributions will be made by the ehgible employees

History of experience gains and losses 2014
£'000

Dhfference between the expected and

actual return on Scheme assets
Amount 623
Percentage of Scheme assets (%) 06

Expenence gains and losses on
Scheme liabilities

Amount 8,692
Percentage of present value of
the Scheme habilities (%5) 80

Total amount recogmsed in other
comprehensive income

Amount (3,001)
Percentage of present value of
the Scheme habilities (%) 2n

2013
£000

5,537
51

(1,916)

(i9)

(8,912)

(82)

2012 2011
£ 000 £000

(4,467) 1,075

49) 12
814 (1,387
10 an

(4,136) 9,203

@9 i1

2010
£°000

12,473
151

1,399

16

(14,853)

(16 7)
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32

33

CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS

Conninuing operations,

Profit for the year before tax
Adjustments for

Exceptional items

Gain on acquisition

Depreciation of property, plant and
cquipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Profit on disposal of businesses
Amortisation and impairment of
mtangble assets

Investment impairments

Finance income

Finance costs

Decrease 1n retirement benefit
obligations

Decrease 1n provisions

Share based payments

Operating cash flows before
movements m working capital

Decrease/(increase) in receivables
(Decrease)/increase 1n payables

Cash generated from/(used 1)
operahions

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Company

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000 £060
(restated)
11,890 5,615 14,693 207)
3,047 . 2,864 .
(12,974) - (28,670 -
5,101 3,169 938 -
1,844 740 2,044 .
(120) - (120) ;
464 1,098 - -
- - . (112)
(351) (612) - -
1,675 879 1,013 124
(3,542) {2,600) - -
(10,i80) (3,447) - -
352 369 - -
(2,794) 5,211 (7,238) (193)
25,135 (2,187) 5,253 (212)
(12,206) (5,586) 4415 2,974
10,139 {(2,562) 2,430 2,567

The company recerved a profit share from 1ts interest 1n Baker Tilly UK Group LLP of £Ni} (2013
£Nil) during the year The company received a management charge from Baker Tilly UK Group LLP

of £5 775m (2013 £Nul)

At the end of the year the amount owed to Baker Tilly UK Group LLP 1n respect of mtra-group
funding arrangements was £49 692m (2013 £24 96im) which ncludes £20m (2013 £20m) relating
to the corporate member's fixed capital contribution

At the end of the year there were net trading balances with subsidianes of £0 830m (2013 £1 299m)

Page 62



Baker Tilly UK Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Dunng the year dividends were paid to the following directors

M B Rodgers
L P Longe

J C Bleach

D Gwilham

E W Jarvis

K P O’Connor
J A Randall

N J Trstem

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Caputal expenditure contracted for by the group at 31 March 2014

but not yet incurred — furniure and office equipment

35 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Group as a lessee

2014

24,480
28,800
20,160
17,280
21,600
15,840
25,920
28,800

2014
£°000

847

2013
i

23,800
28,000
19,600
16,800
21,000
15,400
25,200
28,000

2013
£000

284

The mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for the group are, in aggregate,

as follows

Amounts due

Within one year

Between two and five years
After five years

2014 2013
£000 £000
12,068 11,099
37,952 28,847
48,564 46,883
98,584 86,829

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of s properties and office

equipment

Group as a lessor

At the year end, the group had contracted with tenants, under non-cancellable leascs, for the following

future mimimum lease payments

Amounts due

Within one year

Between two and five years
After five years

2014 2013
£7000 £000
462 1,435
650 1,117
144 204
1,256 2,756

The property rental income eamed durning the year was £0 878m (2013 £1 086m)
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36

37

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 6 June 2014 the group sold its wealth management business to Towry, retamng the underlymng
assets and liabilities On 29 August 2014 the group sold 1its employee benefits business to Arthur J
Gallagher, retaiming the underlying assets and liabilities Total consideration was £25 Im albeit the
financial effect on the group cannot as yel be accurately determined

Under the terms of the RSM Tenon acquisition agreement, further consideration became payable if the
wealth management businesses were sold within 5 years The further consideration, which 1s payable to
the bank and not accrued for in these financial statements, s estumated to be £2 4m.

On 1 October 2014 the group acquired the business, trade and net assets of Simpson Forsyth, an
Aberdeen based accounting and business advisory partnershup for a total consideration of £2 11m plus
net assets acquired The financial impact on the group of the acquisition cannot as yei be accurately
determined

Since the balance sheet date, the group has negotiated a new seven year £10m facility with Lloyds

Bank PLC repayable n quarterly instalments over a ten year period with a bullet repayment due at the
end of the loan term The loan 1s unsecured and attracts interest at 2 25% over LIBOR

CONTROLLING PARTY

In the opimon of the directors there 1s no single controlhing party
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